Board Meeting Minutes January 6, 2023

Present were:

Doug LaFollette, Commissioner and Board Chair
Josh Kaul, Commissioner
John Leiber, Commissioner
Tom German, Executive Secretary
Richard Sneider, Chief Investment Officer
Denise Nechvatal, Senior Accountant
Mike Krueger, IT Manager
Thuy Nguyen, Office Manager

Secretary of State Attorney General State Treasure Board of Commissioners of Public Lands Board of Commissioners of Public Lands

ITEM 1. CALL TO ORDER

Commissioner LaFollette called the meeting to order at 2:02 p.m.

ITEM 2. ELECTION OF BOARD CHAIR

MOTION: Commissioner Kaul moved to make Commissioner LaFollette Board Chair; Commissioner Leiber seconded the motion.

DISCUSSION: None

VOTE: The motion passed 3-0.

ITEM 3. SET BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE

Board Chair LaFollette explained that the board has met on the first and third Tuesday at of each month at 2:00 pm for quite some time.

Commissioner Kaul shared that this time has worked well for him.

Commissioner Leiber commented that this would work fine as long as he knows the schedule of the meetings so he can schedule things around it.

The board agrees to keeping the meetings as the first and third Tuesday of each month at 2:00 pm rescheduling as necessary when conflicts arise.

ITEM 4. APPROVE MINUTES – December 20, 2022

MOTION: Commissioner Kaul moved to approve the minutes; Commissioner LaFollette seconded the motion

DISCUSSION: Commissioner Leiber abstained from voting as he did not attend the December 20th meeting.

VOTE: The motion passed 2-0.

ITEM 5. APPROVE LOANS

MOTION: Commissioner LaFollette moved to approve the loans; Commissioner Leiber seconded the motion.

DISCUSSION: Mr. Sneider commented that the loans being reviewed today are from the same community. The town was asked to take out two loans rather than combining the projects into one loan in an effort to increase the transparency of the loans in the future. Both loans are standard loans for the State Trust Fund Program.

VOTE: The motion passed 3-0.

The Board of Commissioners of Public Lands (BCPL) unanimously approved **\$375,000.00** in State Trust Fund Loans to support **2** community projects in Wisconsin.

- 1. Town of Round Lake / Sawyer County / Finance boat landing repairs / \$34,000.00
- 2. Town of Round Lake / Sawyer County / Finance purchase of fire truck / \$341,000.00

ITEM 6. OLD BUSINESS

None

ITEM 7. NEW BUSINESS

None

ITEM 8. CHIEF INVESTMENT OFFICER'S REPORT

None

Mr. Sneider shared that at the next board meeting he will be presenting his quarterly investment report.

ITEM 9. EXECUTIVE SECRETARY'S REPORT

Executive Secretary German reported that the sale transaction to the Lac Courte Oreilles closed today. He thanked the board for their support and consideration for helping to get that finalized. He expressed a special thanks to Micah for his hard work in getting the details worked out and thanked Micah and Thuy for resolving some of the issues involved in closing the transaction on such a short timeline.

As more organizations are hosting more in-person events, staff will be traveling more. He and Mr. Sneider will be attending the Wisconsin Education Conference in two weeks in Milwaukee. This conference provides an opportunity to promote the State Trust Fund Loan Program to school districts, but also to communicate with education stakeholders on the distribution of the Common School Fund earnings.

He and Mr. Sneider will also be attending the Wisconsin Towns Association district meetings. These meetings are held throughout the state for the next 10 weeks. Executive Secretary German will leave from the Wisconsin Education Conference in Milwaukee and head to Minocqua for the Wisconsin Towns Association meeting the following day. Towns are significant stakeholders as towns are more likely to use the State Trust Fund Loan

Program (STFLP). Town use the STFLP more than villages, cities or counties. With the pandemic, there has been a significant turnover in town personnel and these events give us a chance to introduce our loan program and answer questions on their home turf. Some of the events Mr. Sneider and he have done together have given Mr. Sneider a chance to needle him a bit in front of an audience that is not sympathetic to lawyers or Madison bureaucrats.

The Wisconsin Educational Media and Technology Association (WEMTA) Conference is coming up February 6th and 7th. This group includes the librarians and media technology consultants that use the materials that are purchased with the distributions from the Common School Fund. There is no group more in tune with what BCPL does. In the past, this event was traditionally held in late March or early April and we used the event to present a big check showing what this year's distribution will be. The event was often held at the Kalahari, Wisconsin Dells and attracted upwards of 700 attendees and commissioners and staff also attended. However, this year's event is being held in the Wausau area much earlier than in the past. Since we released the information on the size of our distribution last fall, the event is not as newsworthy as it was in the past.

Board Chair LaFollette commented that it is still newsworthy to the public so an announcement can still be made. We're very proud of what we have done. Perhaps a press release can be made in February.

Executive Secretary German agreed with Board Chair LaFollette and explained that he was hoping to connect with the some of the Wausau media market as well, since it's being held there. After the WEMTA conference he will be heading up to BCPL's Lake Tomahawk office for some meetings. If any commissioners are interested in attending, please let him or Thuy know. He is happy to reach out to WEMTA and ask if the Commissioners would be able to provide a short video with remarks. Please let Executive Secretary German know if you would like to have this done. Also, DPI has released their allocation of our record earnings distribution among the 421 different school districts yesterday. The distribution list is published on the BCPL website.

The Normal School Fund is also heading toward a record distribution this year, at about \$1.1 million to the UW. There is a bit of uncertainty on the horizon in that distribution as the mechanics for the Normal School Fund are in a state of limbo. The earmark for the merit scholarships is due to sunset in April this year before the end of the fiscal year. Last year we had looked into the possibility of developing legislation that would provide some forgivable loans or scholarships for aspiring teachers who attend the UW, but especially to help out rural areas. Since the Normal School Fund was established in the Constitution for the express purpose of funding Normal Schools, which were the original teacher colleges, this seemed like a commonsense approach. However, that effort did not go anywhere last session. He hopes to connect with some lawmakers this year and see if there is any interest in picking that up again.

Board Chair LaFollette asked for a summary of why the legislation didn't go anywhere.

Executive Secretary German explained that it was a bit late in the session and lawmakers were trying to get a lot of things across the finish line and this did not hit anyone's priority list.

Finally, IT expert Mike Krueger retired from state service last week. Mike has been an invaluable asset to BCPL and the state. He will be sorely missed. BCPL could not have accomplish much of its work without a talented IT professional like Mike. Our success was also his success. Good news is that we are in the homestretch of recruiting Mike's replacement. Two candidates made it through the testing phase and we hope to schedule interviews next week.

ITEM 10. BOARD CHAIR'S REPORT

None

ITEM 11. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

None

ITEM 12. ADJOURN

Commissioner Kaul moved to adjourn the meeting; Commissioners Leiber seconded the motion. The motion passed 3-0; the meeting adjourned at 2:19 p.m.

10mas. Jenn

Thomas P. German, Executive Secretary

Link to audio recording: https://bcpl.wisconsin.gov/Shared Documents/Board Meeting Docs/2023/2023-01-06 BoardMtgRecording.mp3